
 

 
 

Board of Zoning Adjustment 

 
 

       BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT 

April 29th, 2025 

 

Pre-meeting – 3:30 p.m. (7th Floor) 

Meeting – 4:00 p.m. (Council Chambers) 

 

 

 



2 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

MARCH MINUTES 2025 .......................................................................................................................................... 3 

AGENDA................................................................................................................................................................. 6 

CASE NO. 1 1308 19TH AVENUE SW ........................................................................................................................ 7 

PROPOSED DRAWING ..................................................................................................................................................... 8 
GIS MAP ..................................................................................................................................................................... 9 

CASE NO. 2 2142 6TH AVENUE SE .......................................................................................................................... 10 

ATTACHED SIGN PLAN .................................................................................................................................................. 11 
DETACHED SIGN PLAN .................................................................................................................................................. 12 
SITE PLAN .................................................................................................................................................................. 13 

CASE NO. 3 1205 MILL STREET SE ......................................................................................................................... 14 

VARIANCE REQUEST LETTER ........................................................................................................................................... 15 
SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 16 
GIS MAP ................................................................................................................................................................... 17 

CASE NO. 4 208 ROBINSON STREET SW ................................................................................................................ 18 

SURVEY ...................................................................................................................................................................... 19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



3 

 

MARCH MINUTES 2025 

 

 

 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:      Mr. Tom Polk  

         

SUPERNUMERARIES:       Mr. Mark Moody, Mrs. Flor Gonzalez, Mrs. Erika Huber  

 

OTHERS PRESENT:       Mrs. Ruth Priest, Assistant City Attorney 

        Mr. John Waggoner Inspector Manager & Recorder 

        Mr. Tommie Williams Planner 

         

        

 

Tom Polk was nominated interim vice chair by unanimous vote to conduct the March meeting. 

Tom Polk called the meeting to order at 4:05 p.m. in the Council Chambers on the first floor at 

City Hall.   

 

Tom Polk asked that role be called. Present as noted above. 

 

Tom Polk asked if the February minutes required any corrections. There were no corrections made. 

Mr. Mark Moody motioned to approve the minutes. Mr. Tom Polk made a second. On a voice 

vote, all Yes, the motion carried. The minutes from the February 2025 meeting were approved. 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Tacala LLC. for a 13 space parking variance from Section 25-16 (2) (f) 

to provide 25 parking spaces for a new Taco Bell restaurant. Property is located at 2142 6th Avenue 

SE in a B-2, General Business District. 

 

Wells Holliday presented this case to the Board. Mr. Holliday stated his name and address as 3750 

Corporate Woods Drive Vestavia Hills AL. Mr. Holliday requested a reduction in amount parking 

spaces required for a new Taco Bell site. Mr. Holliday stated 38 spaces are required under the 

current ordinance. Mr. Holliday stated they are proposing 25 spaces and the lot is not large enough 

to provide for more. Mr. Holliday stated the 25 spaces complies with the new proposed ordinance 

that was anticipated to be adopted by the time of construction. 

 

Mr. Polk asked for questions from the Board. Mr. Polk asked when their due diligence was 

performed. Mr. Holliday stated this time last year. Mr. Polk asked if the 25 spaces would meet the 

restaurants operational requirements. Mr. Holliday stated yes, and any additional spaces would not 

be used. Mr. Polk asked for any other questions from the Board. None. Mr. Polk asked for 

comments from the Public. Denise Williams stated her name and address as 1401 Fairway Drive 

Decatur. Mrs. Williams stated their entrances and exits will be located on her street. Mrs. Williams 

stated that fewer parking spaces would be a benefit to the neighborhood. Mr. Polk asked if she 

would be in favor of less parking spaces. Mrs. Williams stated yes. Mr. Polk asked for comments 



4 

 

from the Building Department. None. Mr. Polk asked for comments from the Planning 

Department. Mr. Williams stated this variance is a condition of Planning Commissions site plan 

approval. Chair closed call for public testimony. Mr. Polk asked the Board for its ruling. Tom Polk 

made a motion to approve the case as submitted. Mark Moody made a second. Chair called for 

role. All Yes, the motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Pro Signs Inc. for a 223.26 square feet sign area variance from Section 

25-77 (e) (1) to install 8 attached signs for a new Jack’s Family Restaurant. Property is located at 

3041 Highway 20 in a B-2, General Business District. 

 

Ginger Hickey presented this case to the Board. Mrs. Hickey stated her name and address as 173 

Rause Road Sumiton AL. Mrs. Hickey stated they are asking for a variance to install a standard 

corporate sign package that contains signs and murals. Mrs. Hickey detailed each sign location 

and size. Mrs. Huber asked if the drive through sign contains Jack’s logo. Mrs. Hickey stated yes. 

Erika Huber asked if there were any signs that can be omitted. Mrs. Hickey stated the sign package 

is standard and used at 300 stores. Erika Huber asked if this was a franchise requirement for 

signage. Mrs. Hickey stated yes. Erika Huber asked if anyone has discussed reducing the sign 

square footage with Jack’s. Mrs. Hickey stated they have but other cities do not count the painted 

murals. Tom Polk asked if they had any particular hardship. Mrs. Hickey stated no. 

 

Tom Polk asked for any other questions from the Board. None. Tom Polk asked for comments 

from the Public. None. Tom Polk asked for comments from the Building Department. None. Tom 

Polk asked for comments from the Planning Department. No one present. Tom Polk closed call 

for public testimony. Tom Polk asked the Board for its ruling. Mark Moody made a motion to 

approve the case as submitted. Tom Polk made a second. Tom Polk called for role. All Yes, the 

motion was approved. 

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Jesus Delgado for a 9.5 feet front yard setback variance from Section 

25-10.9 (2) (c) to construct a covered porch 25.5 feet from the front property line. Property is 

located at 1308 19th Avenue SW in an R-2, Residential Single Family District. 

 

Jesus Delgado presented this case to the Board. Mr. Delgado stated his name and address 1308 

19th Avenue SW. Mr. Delgado stated he would like a variance to build a front porch. Mr. Delgado 

stated the front porch would protect the front of his house from rain and sun. Mr. Polk asked for 

questions from the Board. Mark Moody asked if the front door is metal. Mr. Delgado stated the 

handle of the door is metal. Mr. Delgado stated his electric bill is high in the summer due to the 

sun exposure. Mark Moody asked if there was a storm door installed over a metal door. Mr. 

Delgado stated yes. Mark Moody stated the storm door instructions prohibit this installation. Mr. 

Polk asked if any other options have been considered. Mr. Delgado stated he had been advised a 

smaller porch might be approved. Tom Polk stated the other homes along the street do not project 

past the front setback. Erika Huber asked for the distance from the front door to the edge of the 

sidewalk. Mr. Delgado stated 8 feet. Tom Polk asked Mr. Delgado if would like to proceed or defer 



5 

 

until next month. Mr. Delgado stated yes, it would be better to get the correct measurements and 

submit pictures. Tom Polk made a motion to table the case for construction plans of the proposed 

porch. Flor Gonzalez made a second. Tom Polk called for role. All yes, the case was tabled until 

next month. 

 

 

 

Tom Polk asked for any other new business. None. 

 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at 4:36 p.m. 

 

_________________________    
 

Delayne Dean, Chair 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



6 

 

AGENDA 

 

 

CASE NO. 1 

 

Application and appeal of Jesus Delgado for a 9.5 feet front yard set-back variance from Section 

25-10.9 (2) (c) to construct a covered porch 25.5 feet from the front property line. Property is 

located at 1308 19th Avenue SW in an R-2, Residential Single Family District. 

 

CASE NO. 2 

 

Application and appeal of Pro Signs, Inc. for a 215.53 square feet sign area variance from Section 

25-77 (e) (1) to install updated corporate signage package for a new Taco Bell restaurant. Property 

is located at 2142 6th Avenue SE in a B-2, General Business District.  

 

CASE NO. 3 

 

Application and appeal of Ottie Newsom for a variance from Section 25-2 (1) to construct an 

accessory structure without a main structure for equipment storage. Property is located at the North 

East corner of the intersections of Baldwin Avenue and Connor Street SE in an R-3, Residential 

Single Family District. 

 

CASE NO. 4 

 

Application and appeal of Robert Rainey for a 3.78 feet side yard set-back variance from Section 

25-10.9 (2) (e) to construct an attached shed 4.22 feet from the side property line. Property is 

located at 208 Robinson Street SW in an R-2, Residential Single Family District. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



7 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 1 1308 19TH AVENUE SW 



8 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Proposed Drawing 



9 

 

 
 

 

 

 

GIS Map 



10 

 

 
 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 2 2142 6TH AVENUE SE 



11 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Attached Sign Plan 



12 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Detached Sign Plan 



13 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Site Plan 



14 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 3 1205 MILL STREET SE 



15 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Variance Request Letter 



16 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Survey 



17 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

GIS Map 



18 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CASE NO. 4 208 ROBINSON STREET SW 



19 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Survey 


